
 

Democratic Service 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.gov.uk 
 

 

  
 

Meeting 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
11.00 am, MONDAY, 5TH OCTOBER, 2015 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Ystafell Gwyrfai - Council Offices, Caernarfon, LL55 1SH 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Eirian Roberts 

01286 679018 

maireirianroberts@gwynedd.gov.uk 

(DISTRIBUTED 28/9/15) 



 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Membership 
 

Elected Members (3) 
 

Councillors 
 

Lesley Day 
Eryl Jones-Williams 
Michael Sol Owen 

 

Independent Members (with a vote) (5) 
 

Linda Byrne 
Margaret E.Jones 

Jacqueline Hughes 
David Wareing 

Einir Young 
 

Community Committee Member (with a vote) (1) 
 

Councillor David Clay 
 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest. 

 
 

3.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 

 To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman 
for consideration. 
 

 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

1 - 4 

 The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of this 
committee held on 29 June, 2015 be signed as a true record  (attached). 

 

 

5.   THE COMMITTEE'S MEMBERSHIP 
 

 

 To submit the verbal report of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
 

6.   APPLICATIONS FOR DISPENSATIONS 
 

5 - 10 

 To submit the report of the Monitoring Officer (attached). 

 
 

7.   GWYNEDD COUNCIL'S GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
 

11 - 20 

 To submit the report of the Senior Manager Revenues and Risk (attached). 

 
 

8.   ALLEGATIONS AGAINST MEMBERS 
 

21 - 22 

 To submit the report of the Monitoring Officer (attached). 

 
 

9.   THE OMBUDSMAN'S ANNUAL REPORT 
 

23 - 43 

 To submit the report of the Monitoring Officer (attached). 

 
 

10.   OBSERVING MEETINGS 
 

 

 To receive verbal feedback from the independent members following 
observation of Gwynedd Council/town and community council meetings. 

 

 

 
 
 
 



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 29.06.15

1

STANDARDS COMMITTEE, 29.06.15

Present:-

Elected Members:- Councillors Lesley Day and Michael Sol Owen.

Independent Members:- Ms Jacqueline Hughes, Miss Margaret Jones, Mr David Wareing and
Dr Einir Young (Chair).

Community Committee Member:- Mr David Clay.

Also in attendance: Iwan Evans (Monitoring Officer), Siôn Huws (Senior Solicitor) and Eirian
Roberts (Members Support and Scrutiny Officer).

Apologies:- Ms Linda Byrne and Councillor Eryl Jones-Williams.

Reference was made to Ms Linda Byrne’s ill-health and the Chair noted that she intended to
send a note to the family.

1. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

No declarations of interest were received from any members present.

2. MINUTES

The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meetings of this committee held on the
following dates as a true record.

(a) 13 April, 2015 (extraordinary meeting)
(b) 20 April, 2015

3. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 2014-15

Submitted – the report of the Monitoring Officer enclosing a draft of the committee's
annual report for the period from 1 April 2014 up to 31 March 2015. The Committee’s
observations and approval of the document were invited. It was noted that the former
Chairman and the Monitoring Officer would add an introduction to the report prior to its
publication.

The Senior Solicitor noted that it was intended to circulate the report to the clerks of the
community councils.

RESOLVED to approve the draft of the annual report and to submit it to the
Council’s meeting on 8 October and to seek to submit the annual reports to the
Annual Meetings of the Council in future, or to the July meetings if this is not
possible.

4. REVISED GUIDANCE ON THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS BY THE PUBLIC
SERVICE OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 29.06.15

2

Submitted – the report of the Monitoring Officer reporting that the Public Service
Ombudsman for Wales had published the third version of his Guidance on the Code of
Conduct for Members of Local Authorities in Wales and enclosing the guidance for
Members of County Councils.

The Monitoring Officer noted that this version of the Guidance incorporated:-

 The revised two-stage test the Ombudsman would use when considering
complaints of breaches of the Member Code of Conduct which now included a
public interest threshold.

 Further guidance on the use of social media and political expression and flow
charts designed to provide Members with assistance and clarity on the issue of
interests.

He further noted:-

 That there was a need to circulate this guidance to all Gwynedd Council members
and to the community council clerks and that it would also be beneficial to offer a
training workshop for the members of this committee and all Council members to
provide an update on the Code of Conduct in light of the changes.

 That training would be arranged for the town and community councils in the
Autumn and in the meantime, it would be possible to develop a model for a local
resolution procedure on their behalf, suggesting that it would be a way for them to
resolve some simple matters themselves due to the public interest threshold.

It was emphasised that any support package provided for town and community councils
would have to be a clear and simple summary and would have to refer to the fact that
more details were provided in the full document.

RESOLVED to note the revised guidance on the Code of Conduct for Members
published by the Public Service Ombudsman for Wales.

5. WORK PROGRAMME

Submitted – the report of the Monitoring Officer enclosing the draft work programme for
the committee after completing the self-assessment at the previous meeting.

The Monitoring Officer noted that a formal procedure for observing committees was being
sought and it would be a good thing for the independent members to observe
town/community council meetings in order to gain an understanding of how the councils
operate.

RESOLVED
(a) To agree on the work programme as follows and to amend it / add to it

as needed:-

5 October, 2015
 Ombudsman’s Annual Report
 Corporate Governance Arrangements
 Allegations against Members
 Model Local Resolution Procedure for Community Councils

25 January, 2016
 Gifts and Hospitality Register



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 29.06.15

3

 Declaration of Interests Register
 Annual Report of the Adjudication Panel
 Allegations against Members

18 April, 2016
 Allegations against Members
 Self-assessment and Work Programme
 Training

(b) That every independent member will observe one of Gwynedd Council’s
committees or a meeting of a town / community council between now and the
end of September and will report back to the next meeting.

(c) To send a list of the 2015/16 Gwynedd Council meetings calendar to the
independent members.

6. ALLEGATIONS AGAINST MEMBERS

Submitted for information –
(a) The report of the Monitoring Officer on formal complaints made against members

and updating the committee on the situation in relation to the direction of the
committee that Councillor Christopher O’Neal should receive training from the
Monitoring Officer on the Code of Conduct and the Council protocols that applied to
councillors’ conduct when in breach of the Code.

(b) Issue 4 of the Code of Conduct Casebook.

Further to the report, the Senior Solicitor noted:-

 2.1 Case No. 6141/201400682 – That the Ombudsman had now reached the
conclusion that there ere was no evidence that the town councillor had misused
his position for Financial gain, and that the Ombudsman had said that it was likely
that the councillor had participated in a discussion on a matter where he had a
‘prejudicial interest’, he had applied the public interest test and had decided that he
would not investigate the case.

 2.2 Case No. 5847/201404989 & 5847/201404990 – That this case had been
closed but that the Ombudsman had not confirmed this in writing as yet.

Further to the report, the Monitoring Officer noted:-

 That Councillor O’Neal had asked for a hearing in order to explain why he had not
participated in the training.

 That the act gave the Standard committee the powers, should it reach a
conclusion that a member had failed to comply with the authority’s code of
conduct, to make one of three decisions only, namely to take no steps, to censure
the member or to suspend him from being a member of that authority for a period
of no longer than six months.

 Therefore, there was no statutory power behind the committee’s decision that
Councillor O’Neal should receive training, and that is was only a recommendation.

 He did not believe that there was a public interest in continuing to attempt to
arrange training for the member, neither could he justify the resources or the time
it would take to hold another hearing.

RESOLVED



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 29.06.15

4

(a) To note the report on the formal complaints made against members for
information.

(b) To ask the Monitoring Officer to send a letter to Councillor Christopher O’Neal
stating the committee’s disappointment that he has not taken advantage of
the training recommended for him.

7. WALES STANDARDS CONFERENCE 2015

It was noted that there was an invite for up to three members of the committee to attend
the Wales Standards Conference 2015 in Cardiff on 20 October with the Chairman and
the Monitoring Officer.

RESOLVED to try to send Councillor Lesley Day, Ms Jacqueline Hughes and Miss
Margaret Jones to the conference with the Chairman and the Monitoring officer.

The meeting commenced at 11.00am and concluded at 12.00pm



Committee: Standards Committee

Date: 5 October 2015

Title: Applications for dispensations

Author: Monitoring Officer

Action: To decide upon the application

Background

1. I have received two applications for dispensations from members of Bethesda
Community Council. Copies of the application forms submitted by Cllrs. Godfery
Northam and Walter Watkin Williams are appended to this report.

2. Both councillors have applied in relation to the same matter – discussions as to
eth possible transfer of community centres from the ownership of Gwynedd Council
to the community council. Their ineterests under the code arise from their
membership of the managing committees of these centres.

3. The Standards Committee may grant a dispensation if the situation comes within
one (or more) of those listed in the relevant regulations. These situations are listed in
the appended guidance notes. The Committee must first of all therefore decide
whether the any of the situations listed arise in these cases.

4. If it decides that any of paragraphs are applicable, the Committee must then
decide whether the members should be allowed to take part even though the Code of
Conduct provides that they should not. In doing so it must take into account the
public interest. The Ombudsman’s Guidelines on the code of Conduct notes the
following in relation to granting dispensations

“The standards committee will need to balance the public interest in preventing
members with prejudicial interests from taking part in decisions, against the public
interest in decisions being taken by a reasonably representative group of members of
the authority.”

Recommendation

4. The Committee is requested to consider and decide upon the following:

(a) Application by Councillor Godfrey Northam
(b) Application by Councillor Walter Watkin Williams



(Translation)

Please return to the Monitoring Officer, Gwynedd Council, Caernarfon, LL55 1SH.

If you have any questions regarding this form, contact the Senior Solicitor (Corporate):
Tel. 01286 679168 e-mail - sionH@gwynedd.gov.uk

www.gwynedd.gov.uk

Item 6 - Appendix 1

Application to the Standards Committee for a Dispensation

1. PERSONAL DETAILS

1.1 Your name Godfrey Northam

1.2 Your council Bethesda Community Council

1.3 Your address and contact telephone no.

2. DETAILS OF YOUR INTEREST

2.1 What is the item in question?

Transfer of Gwynedd Council assets to the community or the community council..

2.2 How does your interest in the item arise?

I am chair of the Canolfan Rachub Committee and a member of the Canolfan Cefnfaes Committee.

3. DETAILS OF YOUR APPLICATION

3.1 Are you applying for a dispensation to (a) speak and vote or, (b) to speak only?

To speak only

3.2 Are you requesting:

(a) a dispensation for a particular meeting? If so please provide details below:

During the transfer period, which starts soon

or

(b) a general dispensation so that you can take part whenever the matters arises?

YOUR APPLICATION WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED UNLESS EVERY PART OF THIS FORM IS
COMPLETED



(Translation)

Please return to the Monitoring Officer, Gwynedd Council, Caernarfon, LL55 1SH.

If you have any questions regarding this form, contact the Senior Solicitor (Corporate):
Tel. 01286 679168 e-mail - sionH@gwynedd.gov.uk

www.gwynedd.gov.uk

Item 6 - Appendix 1

4. Regulations prescribe the circumstances in which the Standards Committee may grant a
dispensation. These grounds for granting a dispensation are summarised below and are set out in full
in the attached guidance notes. On which of the following grounds do you believe that a dispensation
should be granted in this case? Please tick the appropriate box(es).

 at least half of the members considering the business has an interest

 my inability to participate would upset the political balance of the meeting to such an extent that
the outcome would be likely to be affected

 my participation would not damage public confidence

 the interest is common to me and a significant proportion of the general public;

 my participation in the business is justified by my particular role or expertise;

 the business is to be considered by a scrutiny committee and my interest is not pecuniary

 the business relates to the finances or property of a voluntary organisation of whose
management committee or board I am a member and I have no other interest 

5. Please explain below why you believe the Standards Committee should grant your application.

There are 13 members on the Council and 4 of us have to declare an ineterest, whichis a high
proportion

(please continue on a separate sheet if necessary)

Signed ________________________________________ Dated ___________________________



(Translation)

Please return to the Monitoring Officer, Gwynedd Council, Caernarfon, LL55 1SH.

If you have any questions regarding this form, contact the Senior Solicitor (Corporate):
Tel. 01286 679168 e-mail - sionH@gwynedd.gov.uk

www.gwynedd.gov.uk

Item 6 - Appendix 1

Application to the Standards Committee for a Dispensation

1. PERSONAL DETAILS

1.1 Your name Walter Watkin Williams

1.2 Your council Bethesda Community Council

1.3 Your address and contact telephone no.

2. DETAILS OF YOUR INTEREST

2.1 What is the item in question?

Canolfan Cefnfaes.

2.2 How does your interest in the item arise?

I am a member of the Canolfan Cefnfaes Committee.

3. DETAILS OF YOUR APPLICATION

3.1 Are you applying for a dispensation to (a) speak and vote or, (b) to speak only?

To speak and vote.

3.2 Are you requesting:

(a) a dispensation for a particular meeting? If so please provide details below:

or

(b) a general dispensation so that you can take part whenever the matters arises?

The matter may arise in more than one meeting of the Council.

YOUR APPLICATION WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED UNLESS EVERY PART OF THIS FORM IS
COMPLETED



(Translation)

Please return to the Monitoring Officer, Gwynedd Council, Caernarfon, LL55 1SH.

If you have any questions regarding this form, contact the Senior Solicitor (Corporate):
Tel. 01286 679168 e-mail - sionH@gwynedd.gov.uk

www.gwynedd.gov.uk

Item 6 - Appendix 1

4. Regulations prescribe the circumstances in which the Standards Committee may grant a
dispensation. These grounds for granting a dispensation are summarised below and are set out in full
in the attached guidance notes. On which of the following grounds do you believe that a dispensation
should be granted in this case? Please tick the appropriate box(es).

 at least half of the members considering the business has an interest

 my inability to participate would upset the political balance of the meeting to such an extent that
the outcome would be likely to be affected

 my participation would not damage public confidence

 the interest is common to me and a significant proportion of the general public;

 my participation in the business is justified by my particular role or expertise;

 the business is to be considered by a scrutiny committee and my interest is not pecuniary

 the business relates to the finances or property of a voluntary organisation of whose
management committee or board I am a member and I have no other interest 

5. Please explain below why you believe the Standards Committee should grant your application.

I believe that the fact that I am a member of the managing committee of Canolfan Cefnfaes does not
adversley affect my role on Bethesda Community Council

(please continue on a separate sheet if necessary)

Signed ________________________________________ Dated ___________________________



(Translation)

Please return to the Monitoring Officer, Gwynedd Council, Caernarfon, LL55 1SH.

If you have any questions regarding this form, contact the Senior Solicitor (Corporate):
Tel. 01286 679168 e-mail - sionH@gwynedd.gov.uk

www.gwynedd.gov.uk

Item 6 - Appendix 2

Guidance Notes

1. This is the form for submitting an application for a dispensation, i.e. permission to take part in a
discussion even though you have a ‘prejudicial interest’ under the Code of Conduct. Further information
regarding interests can be found in the Code of Conduct itself, the Ombudsman’s Guidance and the
Gwynedd Council ‘Interests’ leaflet.

2. Circumstances in which dispensations may be granted

The Standards Committee may grant a dispensation if the application comes within one or more of the
circumstances listed in The Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001):

“(a) no fewer than half of the members of the relevant authority or of a committee of the authority (as the
case may be) by which the business is to be considered has an interest which relates to that business;

(b) no fewer than half of the members of a leader and cabinet executive of the relevant authority by
which the business is to be considered has an interest which relates to that business and either
paragraph (d) or (e) also applies;

(c) in the case of a county or county borough council, the inability of the member to participate would
upset the political balance of the relevant authority or of the committee of the authority by which the
business is to be considered to such an extent that the outcome would be likely to be affected;

(d) the nature of the member's interest is such that the member's participation in the business to which
the interest relates would not damage public confidence in the conduct of the relevant authority's
business;

(e) the interest is common to the member and a significant proportion of the general public;

(f) the participation of the member in the business to which the interest relates is justified by the
member's particular role or expertise;

(g) the business to which the interest relates is to be considered by an overview and scrutiny committee
of the relevant authority and the member's interest is not a pecuniary interest;

(h) the business which is to be considered relates to the finances or property of a voluntary organisation
of whose management committee or board the member is a member otherwise than as a representative
of the relevant authority and the member has no other interest in that business provided that any
dispensation shall not extend to participation in any vote with respect to that business; or

(i) it appears to the committee to be in the interests of the inhabitants of the area of the relevant
authority that the disability should be removed provided that written notification of the grant of the
dispensation is given to the National Assembly for Wales within seven days in such manner as it may
specify.”



 

Committee Standards Committee 

Date: 5 October 2015 

Title Gwynedd Council’s Governance Framework 

Author Dewi Morgan, Senior Manager Revenues and Risk 

Action: To offer suggestions and approve the report 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to explain Gwynedd Council’s Governance Framework to the Standards 

Committee. It is intended to explain to the Committee: 

•••• How the Governance Framework has been developed 

•••• The procedure for reviewing the framework and for reporting on its results and  

•••• The role of the Standards Committee within the framework. 

2. GWYNEDD COUNCIL’S GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

2.1 The Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the 

authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads 

the community. It enables the Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to 

consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services. 

2.2 The Council’s current Governance Framework consists of 31 individual elements. Together, these elements 

combine to create a whole that assists the Council to transfer its resources into public value. 

2.3 The Standards Committee is one of these 31 elements. 

2.4 The Governance Framework was developed using the current Local Code of Governance, which was adopted 

by the Council Board in April 2011, as a foundation. In the period since April 2011, the Governance 

Arrangements Assessment Group, the Audit Committee, the Management Group, Corporate Management 

Team and the Council’s Cabinet have considered the policies, strategies, procedures and processes that 

support the six core principle within the Local Code of Governance and has refined these by adding, merging 

or removing elements to create the current Governance Framework. 

3. LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

3.1 The Local Code of Governance is itself also one of the 31 elements in the Governance Framework. 

3.2 The “Good Governance Standard for Public Services” was developed by the Independent Commission on 

Good Governance in Public Services in 2004. The standard was adapted specifically for the use of local 

government by CIPFA and Solace in 2007. 

3.3 The standard comprises of six core principles, together with a number of supporting principles for each one. 

The standard sets out the requirements for meeting each principle and also what should be reflected in the 

local code of governance. 



3.4 Since they had been developed nationally for the use of local government, and reflect what is required of a 

body with good governance standards, the Council adopted the six core principles and the supporting 

principles of the national standards. 

3.5 The Local Code of Governance has been included in Appendix 1. 

4. GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS ASSESSMENT GROUP 

4.1 The Governance Arrangements Assessment Group monitors matters of governance continuously in a 

disciplined manner, raising a wider awareness of them and promoting a wider ownership of the Annual 

Governance Statement. The Group comprises the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer, the Corporate 

Commission Service Senior Manager (Corporate Support Department), the Delivering and Supporting Change 

Service Senior Manager (Corporate Support Department) and the Senior Manager Revenues and Risk 

(Finance Department). 

4.2 The Group has used the Local Code of Governance to identify the 31 elements that form Gwynedd Council’s 

Governance Framework and special consideration is given to the effect that each one of these is expected to 

have when adding public value for the people of Gwynedd.  Prior to assessing the effectiveness of these 

elements, an Impact score was noted for each of the elements to reflect how comparatively large the effect 

of each one of them will be (in the Group’s opinion) as they add public value. These scores vary from 1 (very 

little impact) to 10 (very large impact). These scores have been assessed, challenged and confirmed by the 

Council's Audit Committee, Corporate Management Team, Cabinet and Management Group. 

4.3 None of the elements have scored less than 5 – if they had, it would be questionable if they deserved a 

prominent place within the Governance Framework at all. 

5. SELF-ASSESSMENT OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

5.1 Various legislation means that the Council must review its governance arrangements at least once a year, 

and publish an Annual Governance Statement: 

• The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014, which state: 

The relevant body must ensure that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the 

effective exercise of that body’s functions and which includes arrangements for the management of 

risk, and adequate and effective financial management. 

The relevant body must conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of its system of 

internal control.  The findings of the review must be considered by the members of the body 

meeting as a whole or by a committee. 

Following the review, the body or committee must approve a statement on internal control 

prepared in accordance with proper practices.  The relevant body must ensure that the statement 

accompanies any statement of accounts which it is obliged to prepare. 

• CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the “SORP”) 

• CIPFA / SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government and subsequent addenda.  The 

latest addendum was published in December 2012. 

5.2 The Governance Arrangements Assessment Group meets regularly to assess the Council's governance 

arrangements, addressing issues that have come to its attention that affects its perception of the 

governance framework. It is noted in 4.2 above that the Group has scored the relative Impact of each 

element of the Governance Framework on a scale of 1 to 10. When conducting a self-assessment of the 

framework, the elements are also given an Effectiveness score. These scores range from 1 (very ineffective) 

to 10 (highly effective). 



5.3 The evidence that is considered when undertaking the assessment of the effectiveness of the governance 

framework includes assessments by members and principal officers in developing the ‘Gwynedd Way’ 

system, the work of Internal Audit, and consideration of the results of the work of external auditors and 

regulators, including the Wales Audit Office, Estyn and the Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales 

(CSSIW).  

5.4 The result of this assessment is challenged by the Corporate Management Team and the Management 

Group. 

5.5 The use of Impact and Effectiveness scores allow the use of a matrix containing the individual elements in 

order to demonstrate the effectiveness of the framework in its entirety. In doing so, it is possible to identify 

those elements that need to be prioritised, namely: 

The elements that can have the greatest impact on our ability to act on behalf of the people of 

Gwynedd, but which are the least effective at the moment 

5.6 The latest matrix is included in Appendix 2. 

5.7 The Annual Governance Statement summarises the outcome of the governance self-assessment in a 

statement that tells the people of Gwynedd what our governance framework is, and how well it works. 

5.8 The Audit Committee has a key function as the Council adopts its annual statement.  When signing the 

Governance Statement, the Chief Executive and Council Leader confirm: 

“We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance 

framework by the Audit Committee, and that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in 

accordance with the governance framework. The areas already addressed and those to be specifically 

addressed with new actions planned are outlined below”. 

5.9 Therefore, in its last meeting before the end of June each year, the Audit Committee is asked to: 

• Challenge the Senior Manager Revenue and Risk on the self-assessment of the 31 elements in the 

Council’s Governance Framework, and in particular the "Impact" and "Effectiveness" scores that have 

been identified, and the narrative that explains the justification for the score. 

• Consider the action plan contained in the Annual Governance Statement. 

• Approve the Statement, and recommend that the Council Leader and Chief Executive sign it. 

  



6. ROLE OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

6.1 The Local Code of Governance states that the procedural rules and the annual report of the Standards 

Committee supports Gwynedd Council in adhering to Core Principle 3 of the Code, which is promoting the 

authority’s values and demonstrating the values of good governance by upholding high standards of conduct 

and behaviour. 

6.2 In its latest assessment of the Impact and Effectiveness of the elements of the Governance Framework, as 

approved by the Audit Committee on 30 June 2015, the following was noted with regards to the Standards 

Committee: 

Impact Score 6: The Standards Committee holds members accountable for their behaviour. In that regard, it 

is helpful in ensuring that Council members act primarily for the benefit of People of Gwynedd. 

Effectiveness Score 7: The Standards Committee is in place and operates with agreed Terms of Reference.   

Minutes of the Committee show that it examines specific cases as it undertakes its work.  The Committee 

itself has also conducted a self assessment. 

Further assessment by the Governance Arrangements Assessment Group suggests that the efficiency score of 

5 given in 2014 appears to be harsh, and assessment shows improvement. It was noted that the Committee 

fulfils its policing role well, but there is room for improving its activities of promoting good standards. 

6.3 Gwynedd Council has established the Standards Committee in order to safeguard standards of conduct 

within the Council and propriety in all the Council’s transactions, and has adopted the Local Government 

Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to 

manage the functions of the Committee.  This contributes significantly to the Council's ability to ensure that 

members of the Council put the public interest at the forefront, rather than being self-serving. 

6.4 The Annual Report of the Standards Committee is an example of evidence of how well the Committee 

achieves its objectives. The fact that the annual report is being prepared, and that the minutes of the 

Committee’s meeting on 29 June 2015 shows that discussions have been held on the timing of the 

presentation of the report to the full Council, is evidence of the consideration given by the Committee itself 

to its role and how best to achieve that. This contributes to robust governance arrangements within the 

Authority. 

6.5 There is an opportunity for the Standards Committee to challenge the scores in 6.2, and to provide evidence 

to suggest why they should be changed. This will allow the Monitoring Officer and Senior Manager Revenues 

and Risk to report back to the next meeting of the Governance Arrangements Assessment Group. 

7. RECOMMENDATION 

7.1 The Standards Committee is asked to consider this report, to comment on its content and approved the 

report. 



 
 
 
 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL  
 

LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE  
 
 

Gwynedd Council is committed to providing services and making decisions in the best 
way possible.  In order to achieve this, the Council has adopted the six core principles 
of "Achieving Good Governance in Local Government". (Cipfa/Solace 2007) 
 
 

Members and officers

working together to achieve

a common purpose

with clearly defined 

functions and roles.

Promoting values for 

the authority and demonstrating  
the values of good governance 

through upholding high     

standards of conduct 

and behaviour.

Focusing on the purpose 

of the authority and on 

outcomes for the 

community and creating 

and implementing a 

vision for the local area

Developing the

capacity and capability

of members and officers 

to be effective.

Taking informed, and 

transparent decisions which   

are subject to effective scrutiny 

and managing risk.

Members and officers

working together to achieve

a common purpose

with clearly defined 

functions and roles.

Promoting values for 

the authority and demonstrating  
the values of good governance 

through upholding high     

standards of conduct 

and behaviour.

Focusing on the purpose 

of the authority and on 

outcomes for the 

community and creating 

and implementing a 

vision for the local area

Developing the

capacity and capability

of members and officers 

to be effective.

Taking informed, and 

transparent decisions which   

are subject to effective scrutiny 

and managing risk.

 
 
 
Each of the six core principle has a number of supporting principles.

800060
Text Box
APPENDIX 1



 

 
The meaning of “good governance” is to ensure that the policy, systems, procedures 
and structures framework, which together, manage the way in which the Council 
administers its business, comply with these six core principles. 
 
Good governance means that the Council’s values and culture accord with these 
principles. 
 
Good governance means doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people, 
in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. 
 
The Council acknowledges that good governance leads to good management, good 
performance, good public engagement and, ultimately good outcomes for citizens and 
service users. 
 
 
During 2010, the Council held a self-assessment of its governance arrangements by 
assessing them against five themes:  
 

• achievements and results 
 

• leadership and governance 
 

• engagement with customers, communities and partners 
 

• managing resources and performance 
 

• procedure and people 
 
 
The results of the self-assessment identified areas of strength along with issues to be 
addressed in an action plan.  The evidence gathered in the self-assessment forms the 
basis of the Local Code of Governance.  
 
The purpose of this Local Code of Governance is to summarise, in one document, the 
principles that the Council adheres to when governing, along with a description of the 
policies, strategies and procedures that show how the Council intends to achieve 
them.  It will be a live document and will be added to as other policies and strategies 
are developed following the self-assessment. 
 
This Code will be reviewed annually as the Annual Governance Statement is 
produced. 



 
Core principle 1:  Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for 
the community, creating and implementing a vision for the local area (including 
citizens and service users) 
 

Supporting principles: 

• Exercising strategic leadership by developing and clearly communicating the 
authority’s purpose and vision and its intended outcomes for citizens and 
service users. 

• Ensuring that users receive a  high quality of service whether directly, or in 
partnership, or by commissioning. 

• Ensuring that the authority makes best use of resources and that tax payers 
and service users receive excellent value for money. 

The supporting policies, strategies, procedures and processes are: 

• The Council Values  

•  The Council’s Three Year Plan 
• The Community Strategy 

• Statement of the Accounts 

• The Financial Strategy 

• The complaints procedure 

• The ‘Achievement’ system 

• The Local Code of Governance  

• The Auditor’s Annual Letter 
 

 
 
 

Core principle 2: Members and officers working together to achieve a common 
purpose with clearly defined functions and roles. 
 
Supporting principles: 

• Ensuring effective leadership throughout the authority and being clear about 
executive and non-executive functions and of the roles and responsibilities of 
the scrutiny function. 

• Ensuring that a constructive working relationship exists between authority 
members and officers and that the responsibilities of authority members and 
officers are carried out to a high standard. 

• Ensuring relationships between the authority and the public are clear so that 
each knows what to expect of the other. 

The supporting policies, strategies, procedures and processes are: 

• Scheme for delegation to committees 

• Scheme for delegation to the portfolio leaders 

• Scheme for delegation to officers 

• Decision Notices 

• Description of members' roles and responsibilities 

• Protocols for implementing statutory officer functions 

• The Protocol for Member-Officer Relations 

• Members’ Allowance Scheme 
 



 

Core principle 3: Promoting the authority’s values and demonstrating the values 
of good governance by upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour. 
 

Supporting principles: 

• Ensuring authority members and officers exercise leadership by behaving in 
ways that exemplify high standards of conduct and effective governance. 

• Ensuring that organisational values are put into practice and are effective. 

The supporting policies, strategies, procedures and processes are: 

• Members’ Code of Conduct 

• Officers’ Code of Conduct 

• The Gwynedd Standard 

• Standards Committee Procedural Rules 

• Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy 

• The Council’s Procedural Rules  

• Financial Procedural Rules 

• Contracts Procedural Rules 

• The appraisal procedure 

• Internal Audit Plan 

• Gifts and Hospitality Policy - officers 

• Gifts and Hospitality Policy - members 

• Officer’s Interests Policy 

• The Standards Committee Annual Report 

 

Core principle 4: Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject 
to effective scrutiny and managing risks. 
 

Supporting principles: 

• Being rigorous and transparent about how decisions are taken and listening 
and acting on the outcome of constructive scrutiny. 

• Having good quality information, advice and support to ensure that services 
are delivered effectively and are what the community wants/needs 

• Ensuring that an effective risk management system is in place. 

• Using their legal powers to the full benefit of the citizens and communities i 
their area. 

The supporting policies, strategies, procedures and processes are: 

• The Risk Management Strategy 

• Overview and Scrutiny Procedural Rules 

• Access to Committee Information Procedural Rules 

• Overview and Scrutiny Strategy 

• Members’ Training Programme (Scrutiny). 

• Officers’ Training Programme (Constitutional Arrangements). 

• Remit of the Audit Committee 

• The Complaints Procedure 

• Decision Notices 

• Committee minutes 

• Whistle Blowing Code of Practice 

• Guidance for Chairpersons’ Booklet 

• The Scrutiny Strategy 

• Corporate Risks Register 



 

Core principle 5: Developing the capacity and capability of members and 
officers to be effective. 
 

Supporting principles: 

• Making sure that members and officers have the skills, knowledge, 
experience and resources they need to perform well in their roles. 

• Developing the capability of people with governance responsibilities and 
evaluating their performance, as individuals and as a group. 

• Encouraging new talent for membership of the authority so that best use can 
be made of individuals’ skills and resources in balancing continuity and 
renewal. 

The supporting policies, strategies, procedures and processes are: 

• New Members Induction Programme. 

• Member Training Strategy 

• Members’ Personal Development Plan 

• Officer Training and Development Plan  

• The appraisal procedure  

• The Succession Plan. 

• The recruitment procedure 

• Member Support and Development Charter  

• Management Competency Framework. 
 

 
 
 
 

Core principle 6: Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure 
robust public accountability. 
 
Supporting principles: 

• Exercising leadership through a robust scrutiny function which effectively 
engages local people and all local institutional stakeholders, including 
partnerships, and develops constructive accountability relationships. 

• Taking an active and planned approach to dialogue with and accountability 
to the public to ensure effective and appropriate service delivery whether 
directly by authority, in partnership or by commissioning. 

• Making best use of human resources by taking an active and planned 
approach to meet responsibility to staff. 

The supporting policies, strategies, procedures and processes are: 

• Scrutiny Annual Report 

• Access to Committee Information Procedural Rules 

• Planning Code of Practice 

• The Annual Report on the Council’s Achievement  

• Gwynedd Together, the Community Strategy 
 

 
 

 
 
 



Part 5: SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

In setting the Impact and Effectiveness scores in the diagram below, the issues to be addressed as a matter of priority are displayed, namely those areas that 
have the greatest impact, but are least effective at the moment 

 

800060_1
Text Box
APPENDIX 2:



Committee : STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date: 5 October 2015

Title Allegations against members

Author: Monitoring Officer

Action: For Information

1. Background

The purpose of this report is to present information to the Committee
regarding formal complaints made against members. The report is based on
information received from the Ombudsman and the case references are his.

2. Complaints

2.1 Case No. 4654/201502178

Date received: 10/07/15

Complaint

A complaint against a county councillor by a member of the public that he had
mounted a local campaign in relation to a particular issue and had misled
council officers in relation to local circumstances.

Decision

No investigation – the complainant had not provided sufficient evidence to
substantiate the complaint.

2.2 Case No. 9367/201503011, 201503014, 201503020, 201503025

Date received: 26/08/15

Complaint

Complaints by four individuals arising from the same incident. Complaints
that a county councillor had made serious and false allegations about
individuals who had been taking part in a protest.

Decision

No investigation – the member had the right to freedom of expression and that
right was enhanced when the comments made are political in nature. As an
elected member he was entitled to the freedom to share his political views



relating to the event in question.

2.3 Case No. 201503255

Date received: 02/09/15

Complaint

Complaint following a telephone conversation between the complainant and a
community councillor.

Decision

Considering whether to investigate

3. Recommendation

The Committee is asked to note the information.



M:\Pwyllgorau\Pwyllgor Safonau\Y we\2015\2015-10-05\saesneg\Item 9 - The
Ombudsman's Annual Report 2014-15.docx

Committee Standards Committee

Date : 5 October 2015

Title The Ombudsman’s Annual Report 2014/15

Author Monitoring Officer

Action : Note for Information

Background

1. The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales has published his annual report
for the year 2014-2015.

2. A copy of those parts of the report relevant to code of conduct complaints is
attached to this report as an Appendix. The report can be found on the
Ombudsman’s website (www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk)

Recommendation

3. The Committee is asked to note the report.










































	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	6 APPLICATIONS FOR DISPENSATIONS
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	7 GWYNEDD COUNCIL'S GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 ALLEGATIONS AGAINST MEMBERS
	9 THE OMBUDSMAN'S ANNUAL REPORT
	Appendix


